Minutes of Neenah Central City Business Improvement District Board February 19, 2019 – 8:00 am City Hall – Hauser Room

PRESENT: Board Members: Alex Noskowiak, Brian Gajewski, Sandy White, Leeann Wasinger, Michelle Bauer, Bob Gillespie, and Grant Birtch. Also present: Sara Hanneman (Future Neenah, Inc.), Nikki Hessel (Future Neenah, Inc.), Mayor Dean Kaufert, Director Joe Wenninger (City of Neenah Information Systems), Samantha Jefferson (City of Neenah Community Development) and Brad Schmidt (City of Neenah Community Development).

<u>Approval of Minutes:</u> MSC Birtch/Bauer, the BID board to approve the minutes of the January 15, 2019 meeting. Motion carried.

Public Appearances: None.

Financials:

- Bills for Approval: MSC Birtch/Noskowiak, the BID Board to approve bills in the amount of \$19,246.16.
 Motion carried.
- Budget Status Report: Sara communicated that Future Neenah's accountant believes that this budget report clears up most of 2018 (there may be a few bills still to be paid). Members asked about grants that have not been paid out yet although approved. One grant, in particular, was awarded in 2017 and has yet to be paid out. Establishing a set amount of time that awarded grant money must be claimed will be discussed.
- Audit vs Review Update: It was established at the last meeting that the BID Board would complete a full
 Audit every third year and Reviews for the remaining years. Sara spoke with John Rader from Baker Tilly
 who agreed that this would be logical way to approach the financials however, an additional cost may be
 incurred due to the testing that would be needed to establish the validity of the beginning balances in the
 audit years. Sara will speak to John regarding these costs. A review will be completed for 2018 financials.

Executive Committee Report:

- Joe Ziemba, J. Anthony Jewelers, Board Nomination: Joe Ziemba has expressed interest in joining the BID Board. He owns the J. Anthony Jewelers and Waveforms Pilates properties.
- Welcome Leeann Wasinger, The Tailored Hide & The Gift Gallery: Leeann Wasinger, Tailored Hide & Gift Gallery, was sworn in at Council as a member of the BID Board on January 16th, 2019. She has been a business owner in the City for over 30 years and has recently moved to the Downtown area. She is also a member of the Maintenance Committee.

Recruitment and Retention:

- No meeting, no report.
- (Action) Sign Grant for Approval (121 W. Wisconsin): Tricia Novak, the owner of the new Downtown store, Tricia's Treasurers (121 W. Wisconsin), has applied for a sign grant for the full amount of \$500.
 MSC Gajewski/White, the BID Board to approve the application for a sign grant for 121 W. Wisconsin Avenue (Trisha's Treasures). Motion carried.

Public Relations and Marketing:

- February 14 meeting update:
 - O Warm Your Heart: 255 mugs were ordered and all were sold out. Committee members are considering purchasing 275 for next year. Twenty-six businesses participated and several hundred donations for Pillars, Inc. were collected. Member Wasinger brought up that she heard many complaints from participants that businesses ran out of food. Member Bauer said this was noticed and the committee will continue to discuss how to deal with this for next year.

Mayor Kaufert mentioned that Gold Cross Ambulance showed up to the event twice and two people were taken to the hospital due to falls on the ice/snow. He was disappointed to see that some businesses did not remove those hazards.

- Ultimate Ladies Day: This event will be April 13th. Member White is creating the gift bags and 274 spaces will be sold.
- January Gift Certificate Sale: The number of gift certificates sold was lower than this
 time last year but the temperature outside was extremely cold. Nine people did
 purchase gift certificates that had never been to the Downtown before.
- March 14th PR & Marketing/Retention and Recruitment Joint Meeting: At this meeting, directional signage, kiosks, and recruitment packages will be discussed.

Maintenance Committee Report:

- No meeting, no report
- Next Meeting March 13
- Member Birtch discussed the snow removal in the Downtown and how efficient and thorough it has been. He thanked the Public Works Department.

<u>In the Spirit of Valentine's Day, what do you love about Downtown Neenah?</u> Assistant Director Hanneman asked each member to share what they love about the Downtown.

<u>Future Neenah:</u> Nikki is continuing to work on finding a maintenance employee for Future Neenah. She is pursuing an arrangement with Pfefferle in which they would employee this person part-time and Future Neenah would employ them part-time to create a more desirable position.

Public Works has mentioned to Future Neenah that some of the snowflake lights will need repaired. Mayor Kaufert did receive an email from a citizen of Neenah saying that they felt some of the Downtown seasonal decorations needed to be replaced.

City of Neenah:

- Joe Wenninger, Director of Information Systems, attended to give an update on the public WIFI project for the Downtown. Currently, they are working with an engineering consultant to confirm access points and work on other issues. They plan to have the project completed by the end of April, 2019.
- Deputy Director Schmidt indicated that he would like to present to the BID Board the findings of the Comprehensive Plan and how it relates to Downtown Neenah, the BID and FNI.

Announcements and Future Agenda Items:

The annual meeting will be in March at Lions Tail Brewery. Dates are still being discussed.

Adjournment: The Board adjourned at 8:55 a.m.

MSC Bauer/ Noskowiak to adjourn. Motion carried.

Respectfully submitted,

Samantha Jefferson

Sametall

Office Manager, Community Development